
Agenda for July 18, 2023, Planning Commission Meeting 

Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. Third Street and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street. 

On or Before July 14, 2023 

AGENDA 
for the Planning Commission 

of the Town of Palisade, Colorado 
341 W. 7th Street (Palisade Civic Center) 

July 18, 2023 

6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3320075780 

Meeting ID: 332 007 5780 
 

I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 pm 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

III. ROLL CALL 
 

IV. AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Minutes from June 20, 2023, Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT – For items not on the Public Hearing agenda 
Please keep comments to 3 minutes or less and state your name and address.  Neither the Planning 
Commissioners nor staff will respond to comments at this time.  The Commission may direct staff to look 
into specific comments to bring back as an Agenda item at a future meeting. 

A. PUBLIC COMMENT REMINDER:  
All emails are to be sent to the Community Development Director at brusche@townofpalisade.org 
Emails for public comment on a specific agenda item received prior to the day packets are 
published will be included with the staff report.  Emails received after the packets are posted will 
be forwarded to the Planning Commission.  Any member of the public who wishes to have a 
statement or email read into the Minutes is required to appear in-person at the meeting and make 
said statements to the Commission directly. 

  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3320075780
mailto:brusche@townofpalisade.org


Agenda for July 18, 2023, Planning Commission Meeting 

Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. Third Street and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street. 

On or Before July 14, 2023 

 
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 

The following items will be presented before the Planning Commission of the Town of Palisade for their 
consideration.  The Planning Commission will formulate a recommendation, which will be forwarded to 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Palisade.   
 

A. PRO 2023-04 – SKILLED GAMING BUSINESSES TEXT AMENDMENT 
The Planning Commission will consider a text amendment to Section 6.01 – Use Table and Section 
14.02 – Defined Terms concerning skilled gaming businesses.  
 
The Planning Commission shall review the application and forward its recommendation to the 
Board of Trustees for consideration. 
 

1. Staff Presentation 
2. Public Comment (Please limit comments to three (3) minutes, state your name and 

address) 
3. Commission Discussion 
4. Decision (motion, second, roll call vote) 

IX. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS / CURRENT PLANNING TOPICS 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



Palisade Planning Commission Minutes: June 20, 2023     Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
PALISADE PLANNING COMMISSION 

June 20, 2023 
 
The regular meeting of the Planning Commission for the Town of Palisade was called to order at 6:00 pm 
by Chair Amy Gekas, with Commissioners present: Riley Parker, David Hull, Brandon Burke, Ed 
Seymour, and LisaMarie Pinder. Absent was Commissioner Don Bosch. A quorum was declared. Also in 
attendance were Community Development Director Brian Rusche and Town Clerk Keli Frasier. 
 
AGENDA ADOPTION 
Motion #1 by Commissioner Hull, seconded by Commissioner Parker, to approve the agenda as presented.  
 
A voice vote was requested. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Community Development Director Rusche introduced LisaMarie Pinder as the new Planning 
Commissioner. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion #2 by Commissioner Seymour, seconded by Commissioner Parker, to approve the Minutes from 
the May 2, 2023, regular meeting of the Palisade Planning Commission, as presented.  
 
A voice vote was requested. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPOINTING PLANNING COMMISSION VICE-CHAIR 
Commissioner Burke nominated Commissioner Seymour for the position of Vice-Chair of the Planning 
Commission. Commissioner Seymour accepted the nomination. 
 
Motion #3 by Commissioner Hull, seconded by Commissioner Burke, to appoint Commissioner Ed 
Seymour as Vice-Chair of the Palisade Planning Commission.  
 
A voice vote was requested. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None was offered. 



Palisade Planning Commission Minutes: June 20, 2023     Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
PRO-2023-07 – Colterris Collections Wine Museum CUP 
Chair Gekas opened the public hearing at 6:04 pm. 
 
Community Development Director Rusche reviewed the staff report, including the history of property 
zoning, use, parking, and application. He went on to review the approval criteria per the Palisade Land 
Development Code which is as follows: 
 

1. That the application will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located 
where proposed and developed according to the plans as submitted and approved. 
The proposed museum use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 
The existing winery has underutilized space that is proposed to be used for the museum. The 
combination of a museum and winery adds to the destination draw of this facility. There is 
sufficient parking available for both uses. One of the existing driveways will be eliminated, 
which is consistent with the proposed access control plan by CDOT. No additional square 
footage will be added to the building. Any necessary interior remodeling will need to be done 
to current building codes. 
 

2. That the application meets all required specifications and conforms to the standards and 
practices of sound land use planning and other applicable regulations. 
The proposed museum conforms to the standards and practices of sound land use planning. 
The Palisade Historical Society has a museum less than ½ mile to the east. The visibility 
of two (2) museums along Highway 6 as a means of conveying the culture of Palisade to 
those who visit is consistent with sound land use planning. Combining the museum with a 
winery further establishes the connection between the products grown here and the history 
of wine making in general. 
 

3. That the application will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property and will not be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or 
other neighborhood uses. 
The application will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property or be detrimental 
to their use. 
The property is five (5) acres and is located across the street from another winery. The 
distance from the high school to the winery, computed by direct measurement from the 
nearest property line used for school purposes to the nearest portion of the building in which 
fermented malt beverages and wine are to be sold using a route of direct pedestrian access 
(per state law) is over 1000 feet. The addition of a museum focused on wine artifacts to 
a legally permitted winery will not be detrimental or injurious to adjoining or abutting 
property, as the property has been a winery for decades. 
 



Palisade Planning Commission Minutes: June 20, 2023     Page 3 of 4 
 
 

4.  That the application will not adversely affect the adopted plans and policies of the Town or 
violate the character of existing standards for development of the adjacent properties. 
The proposed museum will not adversely affect the adopted plans of the Town or violate the 
character of the adjacent properties. 
The Palisade Game Plan (2022) acknowledges the importance of agriculture to the community. 
By adding a wine museum to an existing winery, the Goal of balancing growth with 
preserving the agricultural heritage to maintain a sense of community is addressed 
(Palisade Game Plan, Goal 2.1, Page 60). Exterior improvements to add parking for the 
museum will not reduce the amount of agricultural acreage that currently exists on the 
property. 
 

Applicant Scott High gave a brief vision for the proposed museum and discussed the need for additional 
security. 
 
Chair Gekas opened the hearing to public comment. None was offered. 
 
Commissioners had a brief discussion, including questions to the applicant regarding tasting room hours, 
museum hours, vineyard property, open areas, parking, and the proposed opening date. 
 
The applicant passed out a brochure for the proposed museum. The brochure will be a permanent 
attachment to these minutes. 
 
Various members of the Commission expressed their support of the project. 
 
Motion #3 by Vice-Chair Seymour, seconded by Commissioner Hull, to forward a recommendation of 
approval of PRO-2023-07 Colterris Collections Wine Museum Conditional Use Permit, finding that the 
criteria of Section 4.07.E have been met and with the conditions of approval found in the staff report to 
the Board of Trustees for the Town of Palisade. 
 
A roll call vote was requested. 
Yes: Vice-Chair Seymour, Commissioner Burke, Commissioner Pinder, Commissioner Hull, 
Commissioner Parker, Chair Gekas 
No: 
Absent: Commissioner Bosch 
 

Motion carried. 
 
Chair Gekas closed the public hearing at 6:31 pm. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Community Development Director Rusche reviewed current Town of Palisade projects and reminded the 
Commission that there will be no meeting on July 4, 2023. Community Development Director Rusche 



Palisade Planning Commission Minutes: June 20, 2023     Page 4 of 4 
 
 

also stated that he would send out a list of topics for the Planning Commission to prioritize for the 
upcoming Land Development Code update. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion #3 by Commissioner Hull, seconded by Commissioner Burke, to adjourn the meeting at 6:36 pm. 
 
A voice vote was requested. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

X
Amy Gekas
Planning Commission Chairperson

   

X
Keli Frasier
Town Clerk

 







PRO 2023-04, SKILLED GAMING BUSINESSES TEXT AMENDMENT  

Table 6.1 – Use Table and Section 14.02 – Defined Terms 

SUMMARY 

Throughout the Grand Valley, a new type of business known as skilled gaming has emerged.  These businesses 
purport to offer games of skill that are distinguished from games of chance.  However, these businesses look, feel, 
and operate much like casinos and use technology that complicates the investigation of these activities as illegal 
gambling.  Unlike lawful gambling operations, allowed only in certain communities under the Colorado 
Constitution and regulated by the State, there are no regulations in place that protect consumers of skilled gaming 
from unscrupulous practices or regulations on the flow of money associated with these businesses. 

State law has attempted to address this issue, starting with House Bill 15-1047, which bans simulated gaming 
devices, with the Legislature finding: “These machines, systems, and devices, as more fully described in this 
article, appear designed to evade the existing constitutional and statutory regulations on gambling activity in 
Colorado and therefore are declared to be contrary to the public policy of this state” (C.R.S. 18-10.5-101(1)(a)).  
This statute has been amended since then to clarify provisions and implement penalties for violations of the 
statute.  However, investigations concerning these businesses for violating the gambling laws of Colorado are 
complex, labor intensive, and beyond the capabilities of local law enforcement agencies.  Furthermore, as these 
businesses have proliferated throughout the Grand Valley, they have garnered the attention of the public due to 
problems with increased crime tied directly to these businesses. 

The Board of Trustees adopted Ordinance 2023-01 on January 24, 2023, an emergency ordinance establishing a 
temporary moratorium on the establishment of any skilled gaming business within the Town.   

The Land Development Code (LDC) does not address skilled gaming businesses.  At the time of the moratorium, 
no such businesses existed within the Town.  Staff believe that it is necessary to ensure that remains the case, 
citing the problems of increased crime in neighboring jurisdictions, which have also implemented moratoriums. 

The proposed text amendment to the LDC would explicitly prohibit skilled gaming businesses in all zones within 
the Town.  Skilled gaming has been added to Section 14.02 – Defined Terms with a definition that mirrors 
prohibited activities already found in State law. 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

Table 6.1, Use Table: 

The following is the proposed amendment to Table 6.1, Use Table, which details the allowable uses allowed under 
the Land Development Code within specified zoning districts.  Impacted sections are highlighted in RED TEXT 
with new additions underlined and removals in strikethrough. 



 



The following amendment is proposed to Section 7.03, Commercial Use Standards, with words changes 
highlighted in RED TEXT with new additions underlined and removals in strikethrough. 

Section 14.02 Defined Terms 

Skilled Gaming Business means any business location which features slot machine(s), gambling 
device(s), simulated gambling device(s), or any mechanical, electrical, video, electronic or other device, 
contrivance or machine which after insertion or conveyance of a coin, debit card, credit card, cash, token 
or similar object or upon payment of any required consideration whatsoever by a player, is available to be 
played or operated, and which, whether by reason of the skill of the player or application of the element 
of chance, or both, may deliver or entitle the player operating the machine to receive monetary 
compensation and/or redeemable game credits, or any other thing of value.   

This definition expressly includes ‘fish game’ ‘fish game table’ ‘fish game gambling table’ whoever 
denominated that consists of a tabletop electronic display with one or more stations featuring buttons, 
joysticks, or other control(s) that delivers to the player cash, cash premiums, redeemable game credits or 
any other thing of value for successful play, whether the redeemable payout is made from the machine, 
another machine, or from an employee of the business.   

This definition expressly excludes any business location which features bona fide amusement devices that 
pay nothing of value, cannot be adjusted to pay anything of value, provide only unredeemable free games, 
or provide only tickets redeemable for nonmonetary prizes consisting of toys or novelties of nominal 
value, crane games, bingo operations, coin-operated music machines, or any bona fide amusement device 
authorized within restaurants by C.R.S. 44-3-103(47). 

Slot Machine means any mechanical, electrical, video electronic, or other device, contrivance, or machine 
which, after insertion of a coin, token, or similar object, or upon payment of any required consideration 
whatsoever by a player, is available to be played or operated, and which, whether by reason of the skill of 
the player or application of the element of chance or both may deliver or entitle the player operating the 
machine to receive cash premiums, merchandise tokens, redeemable game credits, or any other thing of 
value other than unredeemable free games, whether the payoff is made automatically from the machines 
or in any other manner; except that the term does not include a crane game or vintage slot machine models 
introduced on the market in 1984, does not contain component parts manufactured in 1984 or thereafter, 
and is not used for gambling purposes or limited gaming purposes. 

Gambling Devise means a device, machine, paraphernalia, or equipment that is used or usable in the 
playing phases of any professional gambling activity, whether that activity consists of gambling between 
persons or gambling by a person involving the playing of a machine, except that the term does not include 
a crane game. 

Simulated Gambling Devise means a mechanically or electronically operated machine, network, system, 
program, or device that is used by an entrant and that displays simulated gambling displays on a screen or 
other mechanism, except that the term does not include bona fide amusement devices, as authorized in 
C.R.S. 44-3-103 (47), that pay nothing of value and cannot be adjusted to pay anything of value. 

“Simulated gambling device” includes: 

a) Video poker game or any other kind of video card game; 
b) Video bingo game; 
c) Video craps game; 
d) Video keno game; 
e) Video lotto game; 
f) Video roulette game; 
g) Pot-of-gold; 
h) Eight-liner; 



i) Video game based on or involving the random or chance matching of different pictures, words, 
numbers, or symbols; 

j) An electronic gaming machine, including a personal computer of any size or configuration that 
performs any of the functions of an electronic gaming machine; 

k) Slot machine, where results are determined by reason of the skill of the player or the application of 
the element of chance, or both, as provided by Section 9 (4)(c) of Article XVIII of the Colorado 
constitution; and 

l) A device that functions as, or simulates the play of, a slot machine where results are determined by 
reason of the skill of the player or the application of the element of chance, or both as provided by 
Section 9 (4)(c) of Article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.   

“Simulated gambling device” does not include any parimutuel totalizator equipment that is used for pari-
mutuel wagering on live or simulcast racing events and that has been approved by the director of the 
division of racing events for entities authorized and licensed under Article 32 of Title 44 of Colorado 
Revised Statutes. 

Crane Game means an amusement machine that, upon insertion of a coin, bill, token, or similar object, 
allows the player to use one or more buttons, joysticks, or other controls to maneuver a crane or claw over 
a nonmonetary prize, toy, or novelty, none of which shall have a cost to the arcade of more than twenty-
five dollars per item, and then, using the crane or claw, to attempt to retrieve the prize, toy, or novelty for 
the player. 

Section 4.01.E., Text Amendment Approval Criteria 

In evaluating any proposed amendment of the text of the Land Development Code, the following shall be 
considered: 

1. The extent to which the proposed text amendment is consistent with the remainder of the LDC, including, 
specifically, any purpose and intent statements;  

The rise of skilled gaming businesses within the Grand Valley has created concerns about the 
circumvention of state law regarding regulated gambling and the increase in crime that results from these 
businesses. 

2. The amendment must not adversely affect the public health, safety or general welfare;  

The proposed text amendment would positively affect the public health, safety or general welfare. 

3. The amendment is necessary because of changed or changing social values, new planning concepts or 
other social or economic conditions in the areas affected;  

The proposed text amendment is necessary to address the societal ramifications of unauthorized, 
unregulated gambling. 

4. The proposed text amendment revises the LDC to comply with state or federal statutes or case law; or  

The proposed text amendment incorporates specific provisions of state law that already prohibit 
unauthorized, unregulated gambling.   

5. The proposed text is found to be consistent with the Town's adopted comprehensive plan. 

The recently adopted Palisade Game Plan contains the following Goals, Strategies, and Actions that are 
relevant to the discussion of appropriate land uses in Table 6.1: 

Goal 2.1: Balance growth with preserving the agricultural heritage to maintain a sense of community. 

Strategy 2.1B: Continue evaluating existing zoning regulations to determine if it promotes balance[d] 
growth with community preservation. 



There are currently no skilled gaming businesses within the Town and the goal of the proposed text 
amendment is to ensure that remains the case. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission is asked to review the proposed text amendment to the LDC and make a 
recommendation, based on the above approval criteria, to the Board of Trustees.   

 



Skilled Gaming Businesses - Page 1 of 1

[def:$signername|printname|req|signer1] [def:$signersig|sig|req|signer1] [def:$notarysig|sig|req|notary] [def:$date|date|req|notary] [def:$state|state|req|notary] [def:$county|county|req|notary] [def:$disclosure|disclosure|req|notary] [def:$seal|seal|req|notary]

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

State of Florida, County of Hernando, ss:

Stefan Edward Pla, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: That

(s)he is a duly authorized signatory of Column Software, PBC, duly

authorized agents of Grand Junction Daily Sentinel, a newspaper

printed and published 5 days a week in the City of Grand Junction,

County of Mesa, State of Colorado, and that this affidavit is Page 1

of 1 with the full text of the sworn-to notice set forth on the pages

that follow, and the hereto attached:

PUBLICATION DATES:
2 Jul 2023

NOTICE ID: kn7m3j5X2CmNekO7Bs4A 
PUBLISHER ID: 171619 
NOTICE NAME: Skilled Gaming Businesses 

[$signersig ]
(Signed)______________________________________  [$seal]

VERIFICATION

State of Florida
County of Hernando

Subscribed in my presence and sworn to before me on this:
07/03/2023

[$notarysig ]
______________________________
Notary Public
[$disclosure]

 

Notarized online using audio-video communication




